THIS FEBRUARY 2008 MONTHLY MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ELECTION COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF PEORIA WAS HELD IN THIS COMMISSION OFFICE AT 542 SW ADAMS ON TUESDAY,

FEBRUARY 12, 2008.
PRESENT:
Camille M. Gibson, Chairwoman

LaColis Reed, Vice-Chairman


Mary E. Harkrader, Secretary



Tom Bride, Executive Director



Elizabeth Beach, Assistant Executive Director



Frank Ierulli, Legal Counsel 
GUEST: 
Rosemary Trumpe



Billy Halstead

The meeting was called to order by Chairwoman Gibson at 4:05 p.m.

MINUTES AND BILLS FOR JANUARY 2008
Secretary Harkrader moved to approve the minutes for the December 31st meeting pending correction to the listing of the officers.  Vice-Chairman Reed seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 

Vice-Chairman Reed moved to approve the January 2008 bills.  Secretary Harkrader seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.

FEBRUARY 5, 2008 GENERAL PRIMARY ELECTION
Executive Director Bride stated the city of Peoria had a little over a 40% turnout.  Early Voting turnout was lower than hoped compared to overall turnout and continued advertising will be necessary to increase this figure, possibly an advertising campaign with the County Clerk’s Office.  Chairwoman Gibson inquired into early voting sites.  Executive Director Bride commented on contacting MidState College in hopes to use a larger room in November in order to set up more booths.  The Care and Treatment Board is a convenient location, voters just need to be made aware of the location.  Vice-Chairman Reed recommended the possibility of advertising more frequently in the newspaper for Early Voting hours and locations.  
Democratic Chair Billy Halstead inquired into the possibility of opening a fourth early voting location.  Executive Director Bride stated the problems in finding a building for a fourth location and the cost of staffing; however efforts will continue to be made to find a suitable fourth location for the November election.    Chairwoman Gibson asked Executive Director Bride to report back on the conversation with MidState College and potential sites for a fourth location.  
Executive Director Bride stated on election night there were two corrupt Mobile Ballot Boxes (MBB).  The votes were pulled from the Judges’ Booth Controller (JBC) for one Polling Place and from the eSlates for the other.  Both the JBC and the MBB cards will be sent to Hart for further explanations on the problems.  Vice-Chairman Reed inquired into the issue the County Clerk’s office had with regard to a JBC on election night.  Executive Director Bride stated he was aware of the issues, but did not know the cause.  Vice-Chairman Reed asked that explanations for both county and city problems be found and reported to the Board as soon as possible.  

Overall, the February Primary Election went smoothly.  There were few equipment issues and power issues.  The backup system was in place and only a hand full of voters voted using emergency paper ballots.  There were some issues with voters receiving Federal Only ballots in error; however the problem was addressed at all Polling Places and will be further addressed at future training. 

Mr. Halstead would like to work on finding more Election Judges and more competent judges.  Mr. Halstead suggested creating a Head Election Judge to have a final say or shifts for Election Judges.  Unfortunately, under Illinois law neither of these suggestions is possible.  Ms. Trumpe suggested possibly having extra staff to work Polling Places to assist voters with the equipment and the judges with procedural issues.  Secretary Harkrader agreed this could be a possibility for future elections.  Chairwoman Gibson stated the importance of Election Judge recruitment this summer by reaching out to students, organizations, and businesses.      
Executive Director Bride stated the mandatory 5% retabulation is underway and is expected to be completed by the end of next week. 

POLICY FOR RELEASE OF PRECINCT LEVEL ELECTION RESULTS
Executive Director Bride stated that if precinct level results on election night were compared to final count precinct level results released after the fourteen day period it would be possible to figure out exactly how an absentee voter voted in a specific precinct.  The idea behind passing this policy would ensure voter secrecy for absentee voters.  Executive Director Bride stated there has been a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request submitted for precinct level results by a candidate.  
Mr. Iruelli pointed out there are two issues to consider; first, the policy for when precinct level results will be released and the second is how to handle FOIA requests for the information.  Mr. Iruelli stated there is no clear guidance on this issue and different jurisdictions handle this issue differently.  If the Election Commission’s first priority is to protect voter privacy, then this policy is reasonable.  By waiting fourteen days to view these records there is still plenty of time to appeal for a recount and these are not records that the Commission has to disseminate, however, these records will be disseminated at a later date.  When a FOIA request is made, it becomes a different issue.    
Vice-Chairman Reed moved to defer the release of precinct level election results until all ballots have been tabulated.  Seconded by Secretary Harkrader.  Motion passed unanimously.  An opinion by Mr. Iruelli is anticipated for handling FOIA requests for precinct level results.  

CANVASS
Executive Director Bride stated the Election Commission’s Canvass needs to be submitted to the County Clerk by February 26th.  Tabulation should be completed by February 19th.  The Board agreed to meet on Thursday February 21st at 4:00 p.m. to sign the canvass.  

OTHER BUSINESS

Ms. Trumpe thanked the Board for continuing to have absentee voting at nursing homes and for working with all of the residents who were interested in voting and needed assistance.  
Secretary Harkrader stated she recently had lunch with the County Clerk Steve Sonnemaker.  Mr. Sonnemaker proposed the possibility of sharing a facility with the Election Commission through the Intergovernmental Agreement.  Secretary Harkrader told the County Clerk that the possibility would be considered but not pursued until after the spring elections of 2009.  Vice-Chairman Reed mentioned the problems that may arise by voters who voted against combining the two election jurisdictions.  Executive Director Bride stated the two offices would not be combined, there would only be one office for both jurisdictions.  Chairwoman Gibson stated much research on the cost savings of such an arrangement will have to be completed before further discussions can occur.   

ADJOURNMENT

Upon motion of Secretary Harkrader and seconded by Vice-Chairman Reed, the motion passing unanimously, the meeting adjourned at 5:13 p.m.

______________________________








______________________________








______________________________
Page 1 of 3

